ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE HEALTH, EDUCATI ON AND SOCI AL SERVI CES STANDI NG COWM TTEE
February 28, 2007
1:34 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Bettye Davis, Chair
Senat or Joe Thomas, Vice Chair
Senat or John Cowdery

Senat or Fred Dyson

VEMBERS ABSENT
Senator Kim Elton
COW TTEE CALENDAR
SENATE BI LL NO. 40
"An Act relating to reapplications for the Al aska | ongevity
bonus program and providing for an effective date.”
MOVED CSSB 40 (HES) OUT OF COW TTEE
PRESENTATI ON: Strengthening Famlies Initiative
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: SB 40

SHORT TITLE: LONGEVI TY BONUS REAPPLI CATI ONS
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) W ELECHOWSKI

01/16/07 (S) PREFILE RELEASED 1/5/07
01/16/07 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/16/07 (S) HES, STA, FIN

02/07/07 (S) HES AT 1:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
02/07/07 (S) Heard & Held

02/07/07 (S) M NUTE( HES)

02/28/07 (S) HES AT 1:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

W TNESS REG STER
Senator Bill W el echowski
Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Sponsor of SB 40.

SENATE HES COWM TTEE -1- February 28, 2007



Tamara Cook, Director of Legal Services
Ofice of Legislative Affairs
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SB 40

Stacie Kraly, Attorney

Departnent of Law

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SB 40

Cl audi a Shanl ey, Systens Reform Adm ni strator
Departnment of Health & Social Services
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Participated in presentation

Shirley Pitts, Early Chil dhood Conprehensive Systens Coordi nator
Strengthening Famlies Initiative
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Participated in presentation

Lupita Alvarez, Director
Juneau Mont essori School
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Participated in presentation

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAI R BETTYE DAVI S cal l ed the Senate Heal th, Education and
Soci al Services Standing Conmittee neeting to order at 1:34:08
PM Present at the call to order were Senators Thomas, Dyson,

Cowdery, and Chair Davis.

SB  40- LONGEVI TY BONUS REAPPLI CATI ONS

CHAI R DAVI S announced SB 40 to be up for consideration.
1:35: 09 PM

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI, sponsor of SB 40, said that certain
techni cal changes had been nmade to the bill in order for the
Department of Health and Social Services to admnister it. He
restated the goal of the bill regarding reapplication for the
| ongevity bonus.

1: 36: 43 PM
TAM COOK, Director of Legal Services for the Ofice of
Legislative Affairs, called the commttee's attention to Ilines

10, 12, and 13 of the bill, which contain the changes in the
bill pertaining to eligibility for reapplication.

SENATE HES COWM TTEE - 2- February 28, 2007



She added that the changes addressed the commttee's previous
concerns conpl etely.

1: 38: 43 PM

SENATOR COWNDERY asked if a person who left the state during the
peri od when the bonus was canceled could return and apply for
it.

M5. COOX said that is correct, as long as they have remained a
state resident wi thout a continuous absence of npbre than three
years.

SENATOR COWNDERY asked for the sponsor's idea for the source of
f undi ng.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI replied that the bill wll use general
f unds.

STACI E KRALY, Attorney for the Departnent of Law, comented that
t he departnent agrees with the changes.

1:40: 51 PM

SENATOR THOVAS asked if the definition of a state resident is
the sane as that for Permanent Fund Dividend eligibility.

M5. KRALEY replied that it is.
SENATOR CONDERY said that he has received the bonus in the past,

and asked if the previous practice of signing a receipt for the
check will be continued.

M5. KRALEY said that the practice will continue.

1:42:51 PM

SENATOR CONDERY noved to adopt the proposed conmittee substitute
to SB 40, |abeled 25-LS0354\E, Version E, as the working
docunent of the commttee. There being no objection, the notion
carried.

He then noved to report CS for SB 40 from commttee wth

i ndi vidual recomendations and acconpanying fiscal notes and
asked for unani nous consent.

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 3- February 28, 2007



There bei ng no objection, CSSB 40(HES) noved from conmitt ee.
PRESENTATI ON:  STRENGTHENI NG FAM LI ES | NI TI ATI VE

1:47: 09 PM
CHAIR BETTYE DAVIS announced the presentation of t he
strengthening famlies initiative.

CLAUDI A SHANLEY, Systens Reform Adm nistrator for the Departnent
of Health and Soci al Services (DHSS), said that t he
Strengthening Families Initiative (SFI) is essentially about
child abuse prevention. Early intervention is the nost inportant
factor in proper developnment and setting a foundation for good
behavior and health. Wen protective relationships aren't
available for children, brain and social developnent can be
i nhi bi t ed.

She explained that there are three levels of stress: positive,
which is noderate and short-lived; tolerable stress, which could
di srupt developnent but is wusually buffered by supportive
relationships; and toxic stress, which is intense, prolonged,
and not offset by relational support. 35 percent of Protective
Service Reports are done on children under five years of age.

She explained that a two-pronged approach is needed to pronote
heal t hy devel opnent : supporting famlies W th early
intervention, and nore targeted intervention to help children
al ready affected.

1:53: 30 PM

SH RLEY PITTS, Early Chil dhood Conprehensive Systens Coordi nator
for the SFI, said that in 2001 the Center for the Study of
Social Policy (CSSP) developed a systematic approach to early
intervention, focusing on child abuse prevention. At-risk
famlies are targeted in particular, but intervention and
prevention for everyone is best. Child daycares are used as
poi nts of education and to help identify early warning signs.

She explained the center's preventative neasures, including
teaching parental resilience, know edge of parenting and child
devel opnent, support in tine of need, and social and enotiona
conpetence in children. Early education prograns help facilitate
enoti onal devel opnment and strengthen parenting skills, and staff
respond to early signs of child abuse and negl ect. 38 percent of
children in Alaskan <child <care prograns have exhibited
behavi oral i ssues.

SENATE HES COWM TTEE -4- February 28, 2007



She added that in 2004 Al aska was selected to receive two years
of federal technical assistance for its early |earning prograns.

2:01:10 PM

M5. SHANLEY said that Al aska used the assistance to develop a
| eadership team to run the project in the state. They were
charged with enhancing the collaboration between child care
resource and referral networks. The Al aska prograns selected for
participation were the Boys & Grls Cub, Open Arns, the Juneau
Mont essori  School, the Rural CAP Child Devel opnent Center, and
the Bristol Bay Head Start Program Each program conpleted self-
assessnents, devel oped i npl enent ati on pl ans, att ended
orientations and conferences, and received mni-grants of
$10, 000, the funding for which came from the Alaska Children's
Trust, Title VI, and Early Chil dhood Conprehensive Systens.

She added that the data from the pilot program hasn’'t been
anal yzed vyet, but explained how all five prograns showed
progress in different areas.

2:08: 07 PM

LUPI TA ALVAREZ, Director for the Juneau Mntessori School, said
that many of the assessnment program criteria were areas for
i mprovenent for her school. The program also helped parents
network and meke suggestions for the school, the sense of
comunity was strengthened, and school activity attendance has
gone wup. Parents now have a better wunderstanding of the
i nportance of developing relationships with the teachers and
other parents. The grant has also been used for nental health
services for students in need.

2:14: 03 PM

M5. SHANLEY said that the pilot prograns were offering different
options wth their grant noney, like free famly dinners,
parenting navigation prograns, and cultural nights; nany of
t hese changes were snmall but significant. The pilot sites are
al so partnering with protective services, and students studying
social work are also beginning to intern with the various
prograns. The initiative also presents its wrk to various
groups statewide, and is looking at how to expand the nodel
st at ewi de.

2:20:26 PM

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 5- February 28, 2007



CHAIR DAVIS asked Ms. Shanley to talk about the conference in
II'linois that the group recently attended.

M5. SHANLEY said that Illinois has had a very effective early
education program serving hundreds of children frominfancy to
adul t hood throughout the state, and she explained sone aspects
of that state’' s success.

2:23: 06 PM

SENATOR COWDERY asked if there is a difference in child
devel opnent between rural and urban settings.

M5. SHANLEY replied that nutrition is a big problem in rural
settings.

SENATOR CONDERY rel ated a personal story about child-rearing.
2:25: 44 PM
SENATOR THOVAS asked how such early education prograns could be

brought to people who do not, or can not, put their kids in
child care

M5. SHANLEY replied that this sort of education is nobile, and
can be brought to different types of programs or |ocations where
famlies are often found, |ike nedical offices and schools.

SENATOR THOVAS commented that changes in school curriculum are
often hard to come bhy.

2:29: 57 PM

M5. ALVAREZ said that program efficacy is a matter of clarity
and consistency of application, and with some famlies a little
extra work is needed to nmke a connection. Also, extra staff
time is needed, which leads to a financial constraint.

She added that young children are very inpressionable, and
tel evision and nedi a can cause behavi oral i ssues.

SENATOR CONDERY rel ated two personal stories.
2:37:16 PM

CHAIR DAVI S thanked the presenters, and asked if the initiative
is at the end of its pilot program

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 6- February 28, 2007



M5. SHANLEY replied that the Al aska program has conme to an end,
and that different states are now participating. Al aska wll
continue to neet with the other states, however, and participate
in conferences.

CHAI R DAVI S asked about the National Children's Trust Fund.

M5. PITTS said that Alaska is a nenber of this organization, and
participates in national neetings.

CHAIR DAVIS asked if there wll ever be a tinme when the
initiative will ask for nmoney fromthe |egislature.

M5. ALVAREZ replied that noney is always needed to reach the
chil dren who need treatnent the nost.

CHAIR DAVI S conmented on the good timng of the presentation and
said that other prograns in the state are working along the sane
l'ines.

M5. SHANLEY said that the initiative does work closely wth
other prograns in Alaska, and that they are all |ooking for
creative ways to further the work they do.

She added that the initiative needs to be connected to quality
child care and fam |y support.

CHAIR DAVI S thanked the presenters and, seeing being no further

business to cone before the commttee, adjourned the neeting at
2:43.: 56 PM

SENATE HES COWM TTEE -7- February 28, 2007



